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SEALE

UNITED STATES, DISTRICT CO
THE EASTERN DISTRIC:T OF NORT

WESTERN DIVISION
FOR

I]NITED STATES

'v.

NO.

A}IERICAOF

INDICTMENT

5\s-c(L- t17- )FL( D

EI,IZABETH NENE AMACIIAGHI

The crand ,Jury charges that:'

COIIMT ONE

Iremainder of

J-

Case 5:L8-cr-00297-FL *SEALED* Document 1

. On or about November 5, 20L6,. in Ehe Eaatern District of North

-Carol1na, the defendants, EITIZABETH NB,IE AMACHAGHI , did knowingly

. 
make a .false Etatement and claim that 6he was a citizen of tshe

United stateE in order to register to vot.e, in violation of fitle

18, UnlEed stateg Code, Section 1015(f).

'I

page intenEionally left blankl

Filed 08/01/18 Page 1of 2
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COIINT TV{O

On or about Novedber 8, 2016, in the Eastern Distrlct of North .

Carolina,' the defendant, EL,I ZABETH NENE AMACHAGHf, an alien,

knowing bhe was not a united st,ate6 citsizen, did knowingly vote ln

an election held .in 
part' for Ehe purpose of elecElng a candidatb

for the office of President, Vice Piegident, and Member of .the

House qf Representatlves, in viol.ation of TiLIe 18', runited st.ateg

Code, Sectlon 511 (a) . t

REDACTEO VERSION
Pursuant to the E-Govemment Act and the

bderal rules, the unredacted version of
this document has been filed under seal

a- 3l-/8
DATE

ROBERT .]. HIGDON, .'R.
Unit,ed States AtEorney

Bt: SEBASTIAN K]EIJMANOVICH
AsaiEtant united Stateg AEEorney

Pdge 2 oI 2

FOREPERSON

Case 5:18-cr-00297-FL *SEALED* Document 1 Filed 08/01/18
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FOR

UNITED STATES

v.

SOIITTIERN DIVISION

No. 1r\X:Ctb)&:). DTD

OF AI4ERICA

INDICTMENT
MARIA. RUFTNA

Ehe Grand Jury charges that

On or about February 15, 20!6, in the East'ern DistricL of

North Carolina, the defendanE, MARIA RUFINA CASTILLO-BOSWEL'L, did

,knowingly make a false statement and. clalm that she was a citizen

of the Unl,ted states in order to regieter to vote, in violation of

Tltle .1g, United Statses Code, Section 1015(f). {

lremainder of page intsentionally left blankl

CASTIITIJO - BOSWEIJIJ

Case 7:18-cr-00135-D *SEALED* Document 1 Filed 08/01/18 Page 7 ot 2
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COI'NT T![O

On or about Nowember 8, 2016,. in the Eagtern Dlstrlct of North
I

Caroltrra, the defendant, MARIA RUE INA CASTILLO-BOSWEIJL, an aLien,

knowing ehe wae not a Unlted states citizen, did knowingiy vote in

an election hdld ln part for the puryose of electing a candidate

for Ehe offlce of PreEldent, Vlce Pree.ident, and .Member of the

House of Repreaentativee, in vioLation of, .Tit1e l-8, United stataa

Code, sectlon. 51L (a) .

TRI]E BILL

ROEERT ,J. HIGDON, .IR;
UniEed States Atstorrjey

BY: SEBASTIAN KIELMANOVICH
AssieEants United States Attorney

DATE

.2

Document LCase 7:18-cr-00135-D *SEALED*

REDACTED VERSION
Pursuant to he E-Govemment Ad and the

bderal rules,lhe unredacled version of
his documenthas been filed under seal

'7-b). /tr

FOREPERSON

Filed 08/01/18 Page 2 ot 2



SEALED

I'NITM STATES DISTRf,gT C
EASTERN DISfRIqI OF NOFOR THE

SOIITHERN DTVISION

No. '7:LV-CL-131- l F,!,
UNITED STATES OF AMERTCS

.v.
. 
DORA MAYBE DAIITATTA-RODRJGUEZ
a/k/a "Dora Maybe Rodrlguez -
De A1ejo"

. The Grand ,Jury charges that.:

COI'![T ONE

. on or about september i, 20!6, in the Eastern District of

North CaroLina, the defendant, DORA MAYBE DAMATTA-RODRTGWZ, aiso

known as *Dora Maybe Rodriguez-De Aiejo,' did knowingly make a

false statement and claim that she was a citizen. of the Unitdd

States in order to register to vote, in viol-ation of Title 18,

Ilnlted StateE Code, Sbction 1015 (f) .

lremainder of

Case 7:18-cr-00133-FL *SEALED* Document 1

INDICTMENT

page inte'ntionally left blankl

Filed 08/01/18 Page t ot 2
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coul|.f TIvo'

On or about Novembeq 8, 2015, in the Eastern District of North

Carollna, Ehe defendant, DoRA MAYBE DAIVIILTTA-RODF|IGUEZ, also known

as "Dora Maybe.Rodrigue z-.De Alejor" an alien, knowing ehe was'not

a United States citizen, aia knowingly vote in an election heId in

part for the purpose of electing a candidate for'Ehe office. of
.!

President, '.Vice President, and ' Member of th: House of

Repreeentatsives, in viofalion of Title 18, United StaL6s Cod.e,

S€ction 611 (a)

REDACTED VERSION
Pursuant to the E€ovemment Act and the

bderal rules, the unredacted version of
Uris document has been filed underseal.

?-9/'/(

ROBERT .I. HIGDON, .IR.
United Stateb Attorney

BY: SEBASTIA}I KIEIJMANOVICH
Assistant Unlted States Attorney

DATE

2

Document

)

Case 7:18-cr-00133-FL *SEALED* 1 Filed 08/01,/18 Page 2 oI2
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FOR THE

.I'NITED 
STATES OF

v.

No.
NO,

AIvrE_lrcA

TNDXCTIdENT
GUADAI.,I]PE ES P INOSA - PENA
DENSI,O AI.,I,EN PAIGE

that

COIIIiIIT ONE

on or about september 28, 20!6, in the. Eastern DlEtrict of

North Carolina, the defendants, GUADAL,UPE ESPINOSA- PENA and DENSIJO
\

AII,EN PAIGE, aiding and abettii:g each other, did knowingly make a

falEe EtaLement and claim that GUADALUPE ESPINOSA- PENA was a

citizen of 'the United States in order to register to vote, in

vioLation of Title 18, United Stat.eE Code, Sect.ions 1015(f) and 2.

lremainder of page

Case 5: 1B-cr.00298-FL *SEALED* Filed 08/01/18 Page L ot 2

1

Document 1

UNITED, STATES DJSTRT T COT,RT
E,JASTERN DISTRIC? OF NORTH CAROLI \

WESTERI'I DIVISION

geALED FrFo,rr
o,v-. ,}El:ouRr

e';l-ce- 2nt-tPL(?)
3:it=r-G:EE-^-r(A

)
)

)
)
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' eoIrNT TWO ''

Qn or abouE November 8, 2016, in the Eastern Dj-strict of North'\
Caro1ina, ihe defeind,ant, GUADAIJUPE ESPINOSA-PENA,. an alien,

knowlng he was.not a United States aitizen, did knowingly vote in
\-

an election held in part for the purpose of electing a candidate
|,for the office of President,. Vice Presiden!, and Member of the

-Hogse of Representat,ivee, in violation of Title 18, United, States

,Code, Sdction 511 (q) .

A TRI'E BIIJI'

ponYpfirdorri--

73lrs
DATE

ROBERT ,J. HIGDON, .IR.
Unit,ed States Attorney

BY: SEBASTIAI{ KIEIJMANOVICH
Assistant United States AtLorney

.\\

Case 5:18-cr-00298-FL *SEALED* Docurnent 1

2

Filed 08/01/18 Page 2 ot 2

REDACTED VERSlON
Pursuant to the E-GovemmentAct and he

hderal rules, the unredacted version of
this document has been f led under seal.



SE

- UNITED STAT.ES DISTRI
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROIJINA

WESTERN DIVISION

Nd, ?:t t -cc- e,oo -rBorD

IrNrrED irarrs oF Ar,rERrcA

.v.
ETVIS DAVID F'ULIJERTON

TNDTCTMENT

charges

orr or about Augruit. 20, 2076, in the Eastern District of North

Carol.ina, the defendant, EwIS DAVID FLILERTON, did knowingly make

The Grand Jury

a false s'taqement and claim that he was

.statea in .order to register to vote, in

Unitsed, Scatea Code, Section 1015(f) .

page intentionally

Case 5:18-cr-00300-BO *SEALED* .Document 1

ir citizen of the United

vtolation of Title 18,

left blanltl'' [remainder of

Filed 08/01/18 Page L of 2
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)
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)
)
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corn{T Two

' On qr about Novemb er 8, 2016, in t,he Eastern District of North

Carolina, the defendant, ELVfS DAVID FUIJIER"oN, an alien, knowing

he was not a United states citsizen,. dld knowingly vot,e' in an

elect,ion held in part for the purpose of electing a candldate for
tt

the office of. President, vlce President, and Member of the House

/of Representatives, in vlolation of Tltle 18, United states code,

Sectlbn 5u(a).'.
)

REDACTED VERSION
Pursuant to the E-Govemment Act and the

fuderal rules, the unredacled version of
this doarment has been filed under seal.

7-B l-/g
DATE

ROBERT i| HrGbON, ,f,R.
Unltsed states Atstorney

BY: SEBASTfAN KIEIJMANOVICH
e.ssistant Unlted State€ Attorney

Case 5:18-cr00300-BO *SEALED*

'2

Document 1 Filed 08/01/18 Page 2 oI 2
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$EALED

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR T}IE EASTERN D]STRICT OF NORTH CAROI.,INA

. WESTER}I D]VISTON

No. 5: tts. qf.1?ot- ltU [a)va

UN]TED STATES.OF AMERTCA

'v.
:

OI,,IVE AGATHA IqARTIN
a/k/? "oIive Ramsey;'

The Gr;ind ,Jury

,I N D I C T IT E N T

charges that

1

COI'![T ONE

On or about. OcEober 28 | 2074, in the Eastern District of North ..

Carol ina, the defendant, OIJM'AGATHA MARTIN, algo known as "O1ive

Ramsey, " did knowingly make a false statement and claim Ehat she

wae e clttzen of .the Untted st.ateE in order to reglster to vote,

in violaiion of Title 18, United.stateg code, secElon 1015(f).

[remainder of page intentiorially left blankj
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On or a.bout November

Carolina, the defendant,,

Ramsey, " an align,
'I

ROBERT ar. HIGDON, irR..
Ilnited St.at.es AEEgrney

BY: SEBASTfAIT KI EIJMANOVICH '

Asslstant Unlted States Attorney

Case 5:18-cr-00301-FL *SEALED*

. COT'ItrI TWO

8, 2016, in the Eagtern Digtrict of North

OLM AGATHA MARTIN, also known as $O1ive

knowing she was no! a United States ciElzen,

dld knowingly voti: in an election held in part for the purl>ose of

electing a candid.ate for the office of Preeident, Vice President,
..\

'and Member of the House of Represent4tives, in violation of Title

,. 18, United.StateE Code, Section 611(a).

A TRI'E B IIJIJ

Documbnt 1 Filed 08/01/18 page 2 ot 2

REOACTED VERSION
Pursuant to lhe E-Govemment Act and the

bderal rules, the unredacled version of
this doqrment has been fled under seal.

1-3t-/8
DATE



, SOUTHERN DIVISTON

NO.

A}4ERICA

?:t6-cfa t"t-.tg o(,)

UNITED STATES OF

v.

KAORU SAT'LS|
a/k/d "raoru wada"

Ihe Grand .uurY

INDICT.}IENT

charges that:

COI'NT ONE,

6n or abou! November 4, 2OL6, in Ehe Eastertl District of North
'

Carolina, the defendanq,. KAORU SAUIrs, aLso known as "Kaoru Wada."

did knowingly make a false stsatement. and claim that she wast a

'citizen of the United states In order. to register tso vo!e, in

violation of Title 18, United states Code, Section 1015(f).

[remaindir of page intentionally left, blankl

Case 7:18-cr-00131--BO *SEALED* Document 1 Filed 08i01/18 Page 1 of 2

. 
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)

)
)

)
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' COUIIT TWO

.On 
or about t'tovember 8, 2016, in.the Eastern DiEtsrict of North

Cafollna, the defendant, KAORU SAULTS; alEo 
.known 

as "Kaoru Wada,"

aYl allen, knowlng Ehq wag nots a United sLates cit,J.zen, did.

knowingly vote in an elect.ion. held irr part for t.he purpoee of

electlng a cand.idate forthe office of President, Vice President,

and Meinber of Lhe Houee of Representatsives, in violatsion of Tltle

18, United Sta,tes Cod,e, Section 611 (a) .

REDACTED VERSION
Pursuant to the E-GovemnEnt Act and the

fuderal rules, the unredaded version of
this document has been filed under seal.

Document 1 Filed 0B/01i18 Page 2 ot 2

' ,71-/8
DATE

ROBERT iI. .Hf,GDON, JR.
Ilnited SEatses Attorney

,\cL.ifi-,.if,:t9*--r*rnL0^
BY: SEBASTIAIT KIEIJMANOVfCH
Assistant United StateE Attorney

\
Case 7i18-cr-00131-BO *SEALED*



FOR

SEALED

UNITED STATES, DISTRICT COURT
THE EASTERN DISTR]CT OF NOiTH CAROIJINA

WESTERN DWTSION,

OF AI4ERICA.

The Giand ilury chargee that:

COIJNT ONE

On or about October 27 ,.2016, in the Eaetern District of North

CarolJ.na, the defendant, SAilIH EMILIA SIIIIERIo- POIrANco, did

knowlngly make a falEe Et.atement and claim that Ehe wae a citizen

of tshe United Stateb in order t.o registser to vote, in violation of

Tltie 18, United stateg Code, section 1015(f).

UN]TED STATES

v.

SARAII EI,IIIJfA SIIVERIO-POIJA}TCO

INDICT!TENT

Filed 08/01/18 Page L of 2

Irema inder

Case 5:18-cr-00302-D *SEALED*

of page intentionally left blanki

Document 1
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. COI'NT TWO

. on or about. Novenber a, 2076, in the Eastsern Distrlct of North

. Carolina, the defendant. SAIAH EMILIA SILVERIO-POITANCO, an aIlen.

knowtng ehe wae not a United States citizen, did knowingly vote in

r Dart f or Ehe Dur.13o ndidatean electlon held .in part for tshe purpose of electing a.ca:

' for thd office of PreEident, Vlce preieident, and Member of. .the

IIouBe ot RepresentaLivds, in viqlation of Title 18, United Stateg

Code, Sectlon 611 (a) .

A TRI,IE BILL
REDACTED VERSION

Pursuant to the E-Govemment Acl and the
frgderal rules, the unredacted version of

his document has been f led under seal.

,v-vl 18
DATE

L

ROBERT J. HIGDON, .fR.
United States Att.orney

BY: SEBASTIAIiI KIELMA}IOVICE
AssLst,ant, Unlted States Atstorney

Case 5:18-ci-00302-D *SEALED* .Document 1 Filed 08/01/18 Page 2 ot 2

I



FOR
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURi

rHE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROI,INA. 
WESTERN DIV]SION 

.

No. 5 :ry-ce-?17- tgo(7)

I]NITED STATES A},IERICA

v.

JOSE CRUZ SOIJANO-RODRIGUEZ

The Grand ,fury charges'

iNDICT}IENT

OF )

)

)
)

that: 
..

courirT ollB

on or about ,fu1y 30, .20!6, in the Eaetern District of .North

Carolina, the defendant, .IOSE CRUZ SOLAI{IO-RODRIGUEZ, did knowingly

make a ialse . EtaEement and claim that he ,."'. citizen of the

United st,ates in.order to register to vote, in violation of Title

18, United Statee.Code, Sectlon L015(f) '

[remainder of

Case 5:18-cr-OO293.BO *SEALED*

page intentionaliy left blankl

Document 1 Filed 08/01/18 Page L of 2.
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COIIITT TWO

. on or about Nover,ibdr 8, 2016, in the Fastern Digtrict of North

Carolina, t.he defendant, JOSE .CRIIZ SOLANo-RODRIGIIEZ, an aIidn,

knowlng he wair not a lrnited states citizen, did knowingly vote in

an election hejld tn part for the purpoee of electsing a candidate

for the office of President, Vlce President, and Member .of the

HouEe of RepreEentativee, " in violatlon oE .Tit1e 1.8, United states

Code, Section 611 (a) ,

A. TRUE BIIJL

ROBERT ,r. HIGDON, ,IR.
United stat,es At.torney

DATE

2

Document 1

BY: SEBASTIA}I KIEI,I\,IANOVICH
Assistant United Statea At,torney

Case 5:l8-cr-0OZgg-AO *SEALED* Filed 08/01/18 'Page 2 ol 2

Pursuan tle
bderal of

this docunEnt has been filed under seal.
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gEAL

UNITED STATES DISTRICT C
EASTEPN DTSTRICT OF NOR

WBSTERN DIVTSION
FOR THE

NO.

I]NfTED STATES OF AMERICA

E:r .s -CP- 2Q(- f f f-(+)

DIAI{A PATRTCIA FRANCO-RODRIGUEZ

INDICTDIENT

The Grand Jury charges that:

General AllegationE

At all times relevant to Ehis hdictment:

1. The Imnigration and NationaLity Act (INA) governs the

inrnigration laws of the United States.

2. The t.erm "alien" means any person not a citizen or

national of the United States.

3. Pursuant to the INA, aliens are not permitted to

permanently reside in the United States unless they are lawful

permanent residenEs

4, TTre ietenAant, DIAI{A PATRICIA FRANCO-RODRIGUEZ, was an

alien born in Chihuahua, Mexico.

5, On Septenber 3, 2OO9, the defendant, DIANA PATR]CIA

FR N\TCO-RODR ].GUIJL, was granted 1awfuI permanent. resident sEatus ln

the unlEed sEates pursuant to Lh" rwa.

Case 5:18-cr-00299-FL *SEALED* Document 1 Filed 08/01/18 Page L of 4
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)
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6. Since Septemb er 3, 2OOg, the defendant, DIAIVA PATRICIA

FRANCO-RODRLGUE?, has noE met the crit,eria for derlvation of

Unlted States citizenship.

7 . on or about AugusE 29 , 20:.2 , thd def endant, DfAI\iA

PATRICIA FRANCO-RODRLGUEZ, registered to vote in,NorEh Carolina

and attested under the penalty of perjury that slie was a citizen

of the unit,ed stsaEes.

8. On or about Jurle 29, 2015, E}le defendant, DIAIiIA PATRICIA

FRANCO-RODRI9IJE?, applied for tlnited states citizenship and

attested under the penalty of perjury that she had never claimed

.Eo be a united States citizen.

9,, The defendant, DIANA PATRICIA FRANCO-RODRIGUEZ, was

assigmed a polling place locaEed in wake county, North carolina,

10. The defendant, DIANA PATRICTA F',RANCO-RODR LGUEZ, voted in

General Election of 2016 in Wake County, North Carolina, whilethe

her

her

applicat.ion for naturalizatlon

application for naturalization

11 , Wake County is located ln

Carolina.

Iranainder'of

was pending. 0n ,fune 29 , 20ir7 ,

denied.

Eastern Distsricts of North

was

the

page intentionally blankl

Case 5:18-cr-00299-FL *SEALED* Document 1 Filed 08/01i1-8 Page 2 ot 4



cou$,r olIE

on or about June 29, 2016, In Ehe Eastern District of North

Carolina and elsewhere, the defendEnt, DIANA PATRICIA FRANCO-

RODRIGUEZ, did knowingly make under oath, and did knowingly

subscribe as true under penalty of perjury under Title 28, United

states eode, Section 1746, a false statemenE, with respect to a

materlal fact in an applicaEion required by Ehe immigration laws

and regulations prescribed uhereunder, that is, DIAAIA PATRICfA

FRANCO-RODRLGUEZ, staEed falsely in an Application for

Naturalizat,ion (Form N-400) Ehat she had never clained to be an

United States citizen, when in fact, as she then knew. she had

claimi:d to be a United stat,es cit,i-zen in a North carolina Voter

Registration eppllcation'on or about Au$.rs t 29, 2012,

AJ.1 in violaEion of Title 18, Unitdd states code, section

1545 (a) .

coullI Two

on or about November 8, 2015, in the Eastern DistricE of North

Carolina, the defendaat, DIAIIA PATRICIA FRANCO-RODRTGUEZ, an

alien, knowing she was not a United SEates citizen, did knowingly

vote ln an eLection held in part for the purpose of electing a

candidate for the offlce of President, Vice President, and Member

Case 5:18-c100299-FL *SEALED* Document 1 Filed 08/01/18 Page 3 of 4



of the House of Representatives, in violatlon of

states code, sect,ion 611 (a) .

rttle 18, unlted

-7-3t-ttr
DATE

ROBERT J. HTGDON, JR.
United SEates Attorney

A.ssistant Uni ted s Eat es .AtEorney

t-____

Case 5:18-cr-00299-FL *SEALED* Document 1 Filed 08/01/18 Page 4 of 4
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FILED
rAU6 I 6 20t8

FoR rHEuHiSiB-i'3TH-?:;',31"$"fi3H"30*o",,r@,ffiL
WESTERN D]VISION

No. 6:t<.cG-BlE-lBo

UNITED. STATES OF AMERICA

,v.
A].,ESSANDRO CANNIZZARO

INFORMETION

The United States Attorney charges that:

Geperal Allegat,Lops

At all tsimeE relevant to this Information:

1. The Immigration and NationaliEy Act (INA) governs the

immigfation lawe of the United States.

2. The term *aIien" meana any person not a citizen or

national of the United States.

3. Pursuant to the INA, aliens are not permitted to

permanently reside in the United States unless they are 1awfu1

permanent residents.

4. The defendant, AL,ESSANDRO CANNIZZARO, was an alien born

in GeIa, CalLanissetta, Ita1y.

5. On ,Jir1y 2l , 7gA5, the defendant, AIJESSANDRO CANNIZZARO,

was granted 1awfu1 permanents resident status at the time he

enEered the United States, at New York, New York pursuant to the

INA.

Case 5:18-cr-00328-BO "SEALED* Document 1 Filed 08/16/18 Page 1of 7



6. on october 3, 2003 the defendant, AITESSANDRO CANNI ZZARO

filed an application for naturalization as a United States

citizen. On March 9, 2007, his application for naturalizaEion was

deni ed .

7 . Since March g, 2OO7 , the defendanE, ALESSANDRO

CANNIZZARO, has neither applied for United StateE citizenship,

been naturalized as a UniEed States citizen, nor has met the

criteria for deriwaEion of UniEed States citizenship.

8. On May 8, 2008, Ehe defendant., ALESSANDRO CANNI ZZARO,

registered Eo vot.e in North Carolina and atstested under the

penalty of. perjury Ehat he was a citizen of the United SEates.

9. The defendant, AIJESSANDRO CANNIZZARO, was assigned a

polling place located in Wake County, North Carolina.

10. The statsuEe of limitations for false claim of

citizenship with the intent to vote is five years.

11. The defendant, ALESSANDRO CANNIZZARO. voted in the

General ElecEion of 2Of6 in Wake Courlty, North Caro1ina.

L2. Wake County is located in the EasEern Di6tricE of NorEh

Carol ina .

lremainder of page int.enEionally b1ankJ

Case 5:18-cr-00328-BO *SEALED* Document l- Filed 08/16/18 Page 2 ot 7



COUIflT ONE

On or about November 8, 20L6, in the Eastern District of North

Caroliria, the defendant, AL,ESSAI{DRO CANNI ZZARO, an a1ien, knowing

he was not a United States citizen, did knowingly vote in an

election held in part for the purpose of electsihg a candidate for

the office of President, Vice President, and Member of the House

of Representat ives, in violaEion of Title 18, United Stsates Code,

Section 6l- l- (a)

DATE

ROBERT ,J . HIGDON, .fR .

United States AEtorney

BY: SEBASTIAN KIE],MANOVICH
Assistant United StaEes AtEorney

8-15-2018

Case 5:18-cr-00328-BO *SEALED* Document 1 Filed o8/16i18 Page 3 of 7



IIV IIEE T'IIITED STAIES DTgINTCT COI'RT
E'OR EEE E]BSTERII DISMICE OE' NOREII CBROI,INA

AEEIDA1rT

BiAC'rGROI,ND

1. f, Jahaira Torrens (hereinafter "your affiant"), am a

Special Agent (S/A) of the Department of Homeland Security (DHS),

under Immigration and cusEoms Enforcement (ICE) , Honeland Security

fnvestigations (HSI ) , formerly known as the Immigration and

Naturalization Service (INS) . Previous to my appointment as an

ICE-HSI S/A, I was a oetective with the Puerlo Rico PoIice

Depart$ent for approxirnately fifteen years, As part of my duties

I conducted r investigations related to controlled substances

trafflcking, identiEy theft, publlc corrupLion, violent crimes,

and other violations. I have been a S/A wlth the federal goverrunent

for approxinately nine years. f am currently assigned to the IcE-

HsI Resident Agent in Charge, Raleigh, North Carollna EieId office

(IcE-Hsi RAC/RA), r have training and experience in the application

for and service of arrest and search warrants. My duties routinely

include the investigation of violations of Tit1es 8, 18, lg, 21,

and 31 of the United states Code.

2, This affidavlt is made ln support of a criminal

information against Alessandro Cannizzaro (hereinafter

"CANNI ZZARO" ) for voting by aIien, in viofation of Title 18, United

States code, Section 6l'1 (a).

1
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3. This affidavit is submitted for the limited purpose of

establishidg probable cause that CANNIZZARO comnitted the offense

of voting by alien, in violation of Tit]e 18, United States Code,

Section 511 (a) , Eor this reason, your affiant has not included

detalls of every aspect of this investigatlon, rather only such

information as necessary. Your afflant is thoroughly famillar with

the infornation contained in this affidavit, either through

personal lnvestigation or discussions with other Iaw enforcement

officers who have interviewed individuals or personally have

obtained information which they in turn have reported to your

affiant.

following information

relative to CANNI ZZABO:

a. cANNIzzARo is an al,ien born in Gela, caltanissetta,

ItaIy.

on July 21, 1985, CANNIzzARO was granted lawful

permanent resldent status at the time he entered the

United States, at New York, New York.

On october 3, 2003, CANNIZZARO fifed an appllcation

fo! naturalizaEion as a United States citizen' on

March 9, 2007, his application for naturallzation was

denied,

2
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4, Governnent databases reflect the

b.

c.



Since March 9, 2007, CANNIZZARO has^nelther appl,ied

for United States citizenship, been naturalized as a

United States citizen, nor has met the criteria for

derivation of Uniled Stat,es citizenship,

On May 8, 2008, CANNIZZARO, registered to vot.e in

North Carolina and atEested unde! the penalty of

perjury thaE he was a citizen of -the United States.

f. CANNIZZARO was assigned a polling place located in

Wake County, North Caro1ina.

g. CANNIZZARO voted in the General Election of 2015 in

Wake County, North Carolina.

CONCLVSTAN

5. Based on Ehe foregoing, I, Jahaira Torrens, believe that

there is ample probable cause to conclude that Alessandro
!

Cannlzzaro was not a citizen of the United States at the time he

voted and is thus guilty of voting by alien, in vioLation of Title

18, United States Code, Section 611(a) .

Iremainder of page intentionally left blankJ

d.

e.

3
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[.:,i - i

Your affidnt respectfully asks that

:grderlng his arr,est for such crime.

on this 1L day of
appeared b.efore me via
oath, and attested to

EEStetn DiStricE of North

Court issue a warrant-the

Auguqt ?0L8, Specidl Agent Jahaipa Torrens
reliablE electronic ,means, was placed under
the content's of this Af f idavit.

Judge
Carolina

4
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROLINA

SOUTHERN DIVISION

FILED

AUG I6 2OI8

IEIER A }'OORE- JR. C|..lf,i(

"'Hry'fffi,

UNITED STATES OF AMER]CA

v.

I{YO SUK GEORGE

INFORMATION

The United States Attorney charges tshat:

ceneral All€gat,ion6

At all times relevant to Lhis Information:

1. The Immigration and Nat.ionality Act (INA) governs t.he

immigration laws of Ehe United Statses.

2. The term "a1ien" means any person not a citize,;l ot

national of the United States.

3. PursuanE Eo the INA, aliens are not permiEted to

permanently resj-de in t.he United States unless t.hey are 1awfu1

permanent. residents.

The defendant, HYO SUK GEORGE, was an alien born in

Seoul , Korea .

5. On September 25, 1995, t.he defendant, HYO SUK GEORGE,

was grant.ed lawful permanent residenE sEatus in the United St.at.es

pursuant to the INA.

Case 7:1,8-cr00138-BO *SEALED* Document 1 Filed 08/16/18 Page 1 of 6
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6. Since September 25, 1995, the defendant, HYO SUK GEORGE,

has neither applied, for United states citizenship, been

naEuralized as a United States citizen, nor has met the criteria

for derivat.ion of United Statses citizenship.

7. On October 27, 2008, the defendant., HYO SUK GEORGE,

registered to vote in North Carolina and attested under the

penalty of perjury that she was a citizen of the United SEates.

8. The defendant, IIYO SUK GEORGE, was assigned a polling

place located in Columbus County, North Carolina.

9. The sbatuE,e of limitations f or f alse claim of

citizenship with the intent to vote is five years.

10. The defendant, HYO SUK GEORGE, voted in the General

Elections of 2008, 2OLO, and 2OL6 in Columbus CounEy, North

Carolina.

11. Columbus County is located in the Eastern District of

North Carolina.

lremainder of page intentionally blankl
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COUMT ONE

On or about November 8, 2016, in the Eastern District of North

Carolina, the defendant, HYO SUK GEORGE, an alien, knowing she wae

not a United States citizen, did knowingly vote in an election

held in part for the purpoee of, electing a candidate for the office

of President, Vice President, and Member of the House of

Representatives, in violatsion of TitIe 18, United States Code,

Section 611 (a) .

ROBERT .I. HIGDON, JR.
United SEates Attorney

BY: SEBASTIAI{ KIEI,MANOVICH
Assistant United States Attorney

8-15-20 18
DATE
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IN TIIE I'NITED STATES DISTRICT COURE
E.OR TEE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORAE CAROLINA

AFFIDAVIT

BJICI(CROUIVD

1. I, Jahaira Torrens (hereinafter "your affiant"), am a

Special Agent (S/A) of the DepartmenL of Homeland Security (DHS),

under Im,'nigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Homeland Security

Investigations (HSI), formerly known as the Immigration and

Naturalization Service (INS) . Previous to my appointment as an

ICE-HSI S/A, I was a Detective with the Puerto Rico PoIice

Department for approximately fifteen years. As part of my duties

I conducted inves!igaEions related to controLled substances

trafficking, identity theft. public corruption, violent crimes,

and oEher violations. I have been a S/A with the federal government.

for approximately nine years, I am currently assigned to the ICE-

HSI Resident Agent in Charge, Raleigh, North Carolina Eield Office

(ICE-HSI RAC/RA) . I have training and experience in the application

for and service of arrest and search warrants. My duties routj-neIy

include the investigation of violacions of Tit1es 8, L8, f9,2L,

and 31 of the United States Code.

2. This affidavit is made in support of a criminal

information against. Hyo Suk George (hereinafter *cEORGE") for

voting by aIien, in violation of TitIe 1,8, United States Code,

Section 511 (a ) .

I
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3. This affidavit is submitted for t.he l-imit.ed purpose of

establishing probable cause that GEORGE committed the offense of

voting by alien, in violat.ion of TitIe 18, United States Code,

Sect,ion 611(a). For this .reason, your affiant has not included

details of every aspect of this invesEigat.ion, rather only such

information as necessary, Your affiant is thoroughly familiar with

the information contained in Ehis affidavit, either through

personal investigation or discussions with other Iaw enforcement

officers who have inEerviewed individuals or personally have

obtained information which they in turn have reported !o your

affiant.

PROB:ABI,E CAUSE

4. GovernmenE databases reflect the folLowing information

relative t.o GEoRGE:

a. GEORGE is an alien born in Seoul, Korea.

b. On September 25, 1995, GEORGE was grant.ed IawfuJ.

permanent resident status in the united scates.

c. Since September 25, 7995, GEORGE has neither applied

for United States citizenship. been naturalized as a United States

citizen, nor has met the criteria for derivatlon of United States

ciCizenship.

d. On October 27, 2008, GEORGE registered t.o vote in
North Carolina and attested under t.he penal-t.y of perjury that she

was a cit.izen of the United States.

2
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e. GEORGE $ras asslgned a polling place located in

Columbus County, North Carollna.

f. GEORGE voted in the General EJ.ections of 2A08, 20L0,

and 20L5 in Columbus County, North Carolina.

CONCI,ASION

5. Based on the foregoing, l, Jahaira Torrens, believe that

there is ample probable cause to conclude that Hyo Suk George was

not a citizen of the United States at the time she voted and is

thus guilty of voting by alien, in violation of Title 18, United

States Code, Section 611 (a) . Your affiant respectfully asks that

the Court issue a warrant ordering her arrest for such crime.

Torrens
Agent
I Security Investigations

on this lb o",
appeared before me
oaEh, and attested

of August 2018, Special
via rel-iable electronic
to the contents of this

Agent Jahaira Torrens
means, was placed under
Affidavit.

Unlted States Maglstrate Judge
Eastern Dlstrict of North Carolina

Case 7: 18-cr-00138-BO *SEALED*
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SEAt-E-L)

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROLINA

WESTERN DIVISION

*. 5:11:tlAB2Ll60

UNITED STATES OF AMERT CA

v.

ROSEMARIE ANGELI KA IIARRI S

a/k/a "Rosemarie Angelika
McLaurin"

INFORMATION

The United States Attorney charges that I

General Allegations

AE all times relevant. t.o this Informat.ion:

L. The Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) governs Ehe

immigration laws of the United Stat.es.

2. The Eerm *alien" means any person not a citizer. or
l

national of the united stat.es.

3. Pursuant to the INA, aliens are noE permitsted to

permanently reside in the United States unl-ess they are lawfu1

permanent residentss.

4. The defendant, ROSEMARIE ANGELIKA IaRRIS, was an alien

born in West Berl-in, Germany.

FlLED

5. On December 3, 2014, the defendant,

HARRIS. was granted lawfuL permanent resident

StateE.

ROSEMARIE ANGELI KA

status in Ehe United

Case 5:18-cr-00322-BO *SEALED. Document 1 Filed 08/16/18 Page 1 of 7



6 . Since Decen ser 3 , 20L4, the defendant, ROSEMARIE

ANGELIKA I{ARRIs, has neither applied for United States

citizenship, been naturalized as a United states citizen, nor has

met the criteria for derivation of United SEat.es citizenship.

7. on october l, 2oL6, the North Carolina Board.of Elections

registered the defendant, ROSEMARIE ANGELIKA IARRTS, to vote

despite not having signed the registration application.

8. The defendant, ROSEMARIE ANGELIKA HARRIS, was assigr:.ed

a polling place located in Cumberland County, North carolina.

9. The defendant, ROSEMARIE ANGELIKA I{ARRf S, voted in the

General Election of 20]-6 in Cumberland County, North Carolina.

L0. Cumberland County is located in the Eastern District of

North Carolina.

[remainder of page intentionally blank]
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COI'NT ONE

On or about November 8, 20L6, in the Eastern District of North

Carofina, the defendant, ROSEMARIE ANGELIKA HARRIS, al,so known as

"Rosemarie Angelika Mclaurin," an alien, knowing she was not a

United Statea citizen, did knowingly vote in an elecEion held in

part for the purpose of elecEing a candidate for t.he office of

President, Vice President, and Member of the House of

Representat ives, in violation of Titl-e 18, United States Code,

Section 611(a) .

ROBERT .] . HIGDON, .JR .

United States Attorney

BY: SEBASTIAN KIELMANOVI CH
Assistant United States Attorney

8-I5-2018
DATE

3
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fN TIIE I'NITED STATES DISTRICT COI'RT
EOR T}IE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROITNA

AFFIDAVIT

BACK@OWD

1, I, Jahaira Torrens (hereinafter "your affiant"), am a

Special Agent (s/A) of the Department of Homeland Security (DHS),

under lrnmigration and Customs,Enforcement (ICE) r Homeland Security

Investigations (HSI), formerly known as the Immigration and

Naturalizati-on Service (INs). Previous to my appointment as ar.

ICE.-HSI S/A, I was a Detective with the Puerto Rico Police

Department for approximately fifteen years. As part of my duties

I conducted investj.gations related to controlled substances

trafficking, identity theft, public corruption, violent crimes,

and other violations. I have been a S/A with the federal government

for approximatel-y nine years. I am currently assigned to thLe ICE-

HSI Resident Agent in charge, Raleigh, North Carolina Field Office

(]CE-HSI RAC/RA) . I have training and experience in the application

for and service of arrest and search warrants. My duties routinely

include the lnvestigation of violations of Titfes 8, 18, \9,21,

and 31 of the United States Code,

2. This affidavit is made in support of a criminal

information against Rosemarie Angelika Harris, al-so known as

"Rosemarie Angeli,ka Mclaurin," (hereinafter "HARRIS") for voting

1
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by aIien, in violation of Title 18, United 'States Code, Section

611 (a) .

3. Thj-s affidavit is submitted for the limited purpose of

establishing probable cause that HARRIS corunitted the offense of

voting by aIien, in viofation of Title 18, United States Code,

Section 611(a) . For this reason, your affiant has not included

details of every aspect of this invest.igation, rather only such

information as necessary. Your affiant is thoroughly familiar with

the information contained in this affidavit, either through

personal investigation or discussions with other 1aw enforcement

officers who have interviewed individuals or personally have

obtained information which they in turn have reported to your

affiant.

PROBABT,E CAUSE

4. covernment databases reflect the foll-owing information

relative to HARRIS:

a. HARRIS is an alien born in West Berlin, cermany.

b. On December 3, 20L4, HARRIS Has granted lawful

permanent resident status in the United States.

c. Since December 3, 2014, HARRIS has neither applied

for United States citizenship, been naturalized as a Unj-ted States

citizen, nor has met the cr.iteria for derivation of United States

citizenship.

2
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d. on october 1, 2016, the North carolina Board of

Elections registered HARRIS to vote despite not having signed the

registration applicat ion.

' e. IaRRIS was assigned a polling place located in

Curnberland County, North Carolina.

f. HARRIS voted i-n the GeneraJ- Elections of 2Ol-6 in

cumberland county, North carol.ina.

Iremainder of page intentionaf]y blankl
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CONCLUSION

5. Based on the foregoing. I, Jahaira Torrens, believe that

there is ample probable cause to 'concfude that Rosemarie AngeLika

Harris, also known as "Rgsemarie Angelika Mclaurin," was not a

citizen of the United states at the time she voted and is thus

guj"Ity of voting by alien, in violation of Title 18, United States

code, section 611(a) . Your affiant respectfully asks that the Court

issue a warrant ordering her arrest for such crime.

on this (6 o^,
appeared before me
oath, and attested

of August 2018, Special Agent Jahaira Torrens
via reliable electronic means, was pfaced under
to the contents of this Affidavit.

JAME S . GATES
States Magistrate Judge
District of North Ca rofina

United
Eastern

s
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROI.,INA

WESTERN DIVISION

No. E:t$:CG-321-Zo

FILEE
fAUG I020tB

The United StateE Attorney chargee that:

General Allegatl,086

At all times relevant to Ehis fnformation:

1. The ImmigraEion and Nationalitsy Act (INA) governs Ehe

immigration laws of the United Statee.

I]NITED STATES OF AMERICA

v.

MERIOUS .]EAN

2. The term ualien" meanE any

national 0f the united staceE.

3. Pursuants to t.he INA, aliens

permanently reside in the United Suates

permanent residents.

4. The defendant, MERIOUS JEAN,

INFORMATTON

perEon not a citizen or

are not permitted to

unless they are lawful

was an alien born in

Bellevue Bassin B1ue, Laplante., Haiti.

5. On ,fanuary 12, L989, the defendant, MERIoUS JEAN, rtas

granted lawful permanent resident staEus in the United states

pursuant tso the INA.

Case 5:L8-cr00327-BO *SEALED* Document 1 Filed 08/16/18 Page 1of 6
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6. Since .Tanuary !2, l-989, the def endant, MERIOUS ,fEAN, has

neither applied for United states citizenship, been naturalized

as a United SEatses ciEizen, nor has met t.he criteria for derivative

citizenship.

on Septeriber 31-, 2012, the defendant, MERIOUS .IEAII,

regisEered to vote in North Carolina and attested under the

penalty of perjury that he was a citizen of the UniEed States.

8. The defendant, MERIOUS JEAN, was assigned a polling

place locaEed in Wilson County, North Carolina.

9. The statute of limitations for false claim of

cit.izenship with the intent to vote is five years.

10. The defendanE, MERIOUS JEAN, woted in the General,

Elect.ions of 20!2 and 201-5 in Wilson County, North Carolina.

11. Wilson County is located in the Eastern District of North

Carol ina .

[remainder of page intentionally blank)
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COI]NT ONE

On or about November 8, 2016, in the Eastern District of North

Carolina, the defendant, MERIOUS ,fEAItr, an aIien, knowing he was

not a United States ciLizen, did knowingly vote in an election

held in part for the purpose of electing a candidate for the office

of President, Vice President, and Member of the House of

Representatives, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Section er1 (a) .

ROBERT ,J. HTGDON, JR.
United States Attorney

BY: SEBASTIAIV KIEIJMANOVICH
Assistant United States Attorney

8-15-20 18
DATE
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IN TEE I'NIIIED STAAES DISTRICT COI'RT
rOR TEE EA,SII'ERN DISTRICT OE NORlrB CBROLINA

AEFIDAVIT

a,ACKGROUND

I. I, ,Iahaira Torrens (hereinafter "your affiant"), am a

Special Agent (S/A) of the Department of Homeland Security (DHS),

under Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Homeland Security

Investigations (HSI), formerly known as the Immigration and

Naturalizat j.on Service ( INS ) . Previous t.o my appointment as an

ICE-HSI S/A, f was a Detective with the Puerto Rico Police

Department for approximately fifteen years. As part of my duties

I conducted investigations related to controlled substances

trafficking, iaentity theft, public corruption, violent crirnes,

and other violations. I have been a S/A with the federal government

for approximately nine years. I am currently assigned to the ICE-

HSI Resident Agent in Charge, Raleigh, North Carolina Field Office

(ICE-HSI RAC/RA). I have training and experience in the application

for and service of arrest and search warrants. My duties routinely

include the investigation of violations of Titles 8, 18, 19, 2L,

and 31 of the United States Code.

2, This affidavit is made in support of a criminal

information against Merious Jean (hereinafter "JEAN") for voting

by alien, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section

511 (a) .

:l

:i

I

lr
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3. This affidavit is submitted for the Iimited purpose of

establishing probable cause that .IEAN committed the offense of

voEing by alien, in vlolation of Tit]e 18, United States Code,

Section 511(a) . Eor this reason, your affiant has noE included

details of every aspect of this investigation, rather onfy such

information as necessary. Your affiant is thoroughly familiar with

the j.nformation contained in this affidavit, either through

personal investigation or discussions with other law enforcemenL

officers who have interviewed individuals or personally have

obtained information which they in turn have reported Eo your

affiant.

4. Government

relative t,o JEAN:

a. JEAN is

LapIante, Haiti.

PAOBABTE CaUSE

databases reflect the following information

an alien born in BeIlevue Bassin BIue,

b. On ,January !2, L989, JEAN was granted Iawful

permanent resident status in the United St.ates.

c. Since January !2, 1,989, ,IEAN has neither applied for

UniEed States citizenship, been naturalized as a Unit.ed States

citizen, nor has met the crlteria for derivative citizenship.

d, on septenber 37, 2012, JEAN reglstered to vote in

Nort.h Carolina and altested under Ehe penalty of perjury that he

was a citizen of the UniEed States.

2
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e. JEAN was assigqed a polling place located in Wilson

County, North CaroJ.ina,

t, .IEAN votdd in thb General Elections of 2Of2 and 2016

in Wilson Countyr North Carolina.

CONCLUSTON

5. Based on the foregoing, I, Jahaira Torrens, believe that

there is ample probable cause to conclude that Merious Jean was

not a citizen of the United StaLes at the time he voted and is

thijs guilty of voting by alien, in violation of Title 18, Unired

Slates Code, Section 51I(a) . your affiant respectfully asks that

the Coilrt issue a warrant order'ing his drrest for stich crime.

.I
spe
Homeland Seriuri ty InVeStiga!ionS

on this [0 o^,
appeated before me
oath, and attes ted

of Ailgust 2018, Special Agent Jahaira Torrens
via. reliable electronic means, was placed under
to the contents of this Affidavit.

Case 5:L8-cr-00327 -BO *SEALED*
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COI'RT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH

WESTERN DIVISION

NO.

AMERICA

I FILED
iAuq I 6 2ol8

TNFORUATION

.SEAl"-HD

UNITED STATES OF

5:t$-c(1-3)S-lD

,JUAN FRANCI SCO LANDEROS -MIRELES

The United Statses AE,torney charges Ehat:

'Geperal AllegatLonB

At all times relevant to this fnformation:

1. The Immigrat,ion and Nationality Act (INA) gowerns Ehe

immigration laws of the Unitsed SEates.

2. The Eerm nalien" means any person not a citizen or

national of the United Stsatea.

3. Pursuant t.o the INA, aliene are not permitted to

permanently reside in the United states unless they are Iawful

permanent residents.

4. The defendant, iruAN FF,ANCISCO LANDEROS -MIRBLES, was an

alien born in Zacatecas, Mexico.

5. On December 1, 1990, Ehe defendant, ,]UAN FRANCISCO

LANDEROS-MIRELES, was granted lawfu1 permanent, resident status in

the United States pursuant to the fNA.
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6 . since December 1, f990 , the def endant, .ft]AI'I ' FRANCISCO

L.,ANDEROS-MIRELES, has neither applied for United States

citizenship, nor been naEuralized as a united Stsates citizen, nor

has met the criteria for deriwation of United States citizenehip.

7. On October 24, 20L2, the defendant, ,fllAll FRANCISCO

LANDERoS-MIRELES, regi6tered Eo vote in North Carolina and

attested under the penalty

the Unitsed States.

8. The def endant, .IUAN FRANCISCO

assigned a polling place located in Wilson

9. The st.atute of limitsations

perjury that he was a citizen of

I,ANDEROS-MIRELES, was

County, North Carol ina .

for false claim of

Document 1. Filed 08/16/18 Page 2 of 6

of

citizenship wiEh the intents to voEe is five years.

10. The defendanE, JuAN FRANCISCO LANDEROS -MIRELES, voted in

the General Elections of 2of2 and 20l-6 in Wilson County, North

Carolina.

11. Wilson County is located in the Eastern District. of North

Carolina.

Irema i nder page intsentionally blanklof
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COI'IIT ONE

On or about November 8, 2015, in the Eastern Districts of North

Carolina, the defendanE, .fUAN FRANCISCO LANDEROS-MIRELES, an

alien, knowing he was not a United Statses ciLizen, did knowingly

vote in an elecEion held in part for the purpose of elecEing a

candidate for the office of President, Vice PresidenE, and Member

of the House of Representat ives, in violation of Title 18, United

SEates Code. Sect.ion 511(a) .

ROBERT .f . HIGDON, JR .

United States AEtorney

BY: SEBAST]AN KIELMANOVICH
Assistant Unit,ed States Attorney

8-15-2018
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTII CAROIJINA

AFFIDAVIT

BACKGROCIND

1. r. .fahaira Torrens (hereinafter "your affiant"), am a

Special agent (S/A) of the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) .

under fmmigration and Customs Enforcement (fCE), Homel,and Security

Investigations (HsI), formerly known as the Immigration and

Naturalization Service (INS) . Previous to my appointment as an

ICE-HSI S/A, I riras a Detective wiEh the Puertso Rico Police

Department for approximately fifteen years. As part of my duties

I conducted investigations related to controlled substances

trafficking, identity theft. pubJ-ic corruption, violent crimes,

and other violations. I have been a S/A with the federal government

for approximately nine years. I am currently assigned to the ICE-

gSI Resident Agent in Charge, Raleigh, North Carol-ina FieId Office

(ICE-HSI RAC/FA) . I have training and experience in the applicat j-on

for and service of arrest and search warrants. My duties routinely

include the investigation of violaEions of Titles 8, 18, f9,2L,

and 31 of Ehe United States Code.

2. This affidavit is made in support of a criminal

informaEion against ,Juan Francisco Landeros -Mireles (hereinafter

"LANDEROS" ) for voting by a1ien, in violation of Title 18, United

Stales Code, SecEion 611(a) .

L
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3. This affidavit is submitted for the limitsed purpose of

establishing probable cause that I,ANDEROS committed tshe offense of

voting by aIien, in violation of Title l-8, United states code,

Section 511 (a) . For this reason. your affiant has not included

details of every aspect. of this investigation, rather only such

information as necessary. Your affiant is Ehoroughly familiar lrith

the information contained in this affidavit, either through

personal invesEigation or discussions with other 1aw enforcement

officers who have j.nterviewed individuals or personally have

obEained information which t.hey in turn have reported to your

aff iant .

PROBABLE CAUSE

4. GoverDment databases reflect the following information

relative to LANDERoS :

a. I-.,ANDEROS is an alien born in zacatecas, Mexico.

b. On December 1, 1990, LANDEROS vras granted Iawful

permanenE resident sEatus in the UniEed states.

c.. Since Decedber l, 1990, ITANDEROS has neither applied

for Unit.ed staEes ciEizenship, nor been naturalized

as a United Statea citizen, nor has meE the criEeria

for derivat,ion of United States citizenship.

d. On OcE.ober 24 , 2012, I-,ANDEROS registered to vote in

North Carolina and atstested under the penalty of

perjury that he was a citi-zen of the United States.

2
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e. IJANDEROS was assigned a polling place Located in

wilson county, North carolina.

f. IJANDERoS voted in the General Electiorrs of 2012 and

2016 in Wilson County, Nort.h Caro1ina.

CONCI'ASIoN

5 Based on the foregoing, I, .lahaira Torrens, believe EhaE

there is ample probable cause to conclude that Juan Francisco

Landeros -Mireles was not. a citizen of the United states at the

time he voted and is thus guilty of voting by alien, in violation

of Tit1e,18, United Stat.es code, Section 611 (a). Your affiant

respectfully asks that Ehe Court issue a warrant ordering his

arrest for such crime -

Special
Home land

Torrens
Agent
Security fnvestigations

JAMES
United
Eastern District of North Carol ina

3
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via reliable electronic
to the contents of this

Agent ,lahaira Torrens
means. was placed under
Affidavit.

GA

ates Magistrate lrudge
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTI{ CAROLINA Ey!

NORTHERN DIVISION

'.-Z-:lW:!fiZA-lB0
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v. TNFORMATION

.]OSE .]AIME RAMTRO-TORRES

The United States Attorney charges that:
. Getreral AIIggElg

At all times relevant to this fnformation:

L. The ImmigraEion and Nationality Act (INA) governs the

immigration laws of the United States.

2. The term \talien" meana any peraon not a citizen or

national- of the UniE.ed stsates.

3. Pursuant to the INA, aliens are not permitted to

permanently reside in Ehe United St.ates unLess they are lawfuI

permanenE. residents.

4. The defendant, JOSE iIAIME RAMIRO-ToRRES, was an alien

born in San Salvador, El Sa+vador.

5. On March 21, 1990, the defendant, JOSE ,fAI ME RAMIRO-

TORRES, was granted lawfu] permanent resident status in t.he United

States pursuant to the INA.

Case 2:L8-cr-00029-BO .SEALED* Document 1 Filed 08/16/18 Page 1of 6
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6. Since March 21-, 1-990, the defendant, .IOSE.IAIME RAMIRO-

TORRES, has neither applied for United States citizenship, been

naturalized as a United States citizen, nor has met the criteria

for derivative citizenship.

7 . On rJune 10, 201-:.., the def endant, JOSE .IAIME RAMIRO-

TORRES, registered to vote in North Carolina and attested under

the penalty of perjury that he was a citizen of the United States.

I . The def endant, ,JOSE ,JAIME RAMIRO-TORRES, was assigrned a

polling place located in Washington County, North Carolina.

9. The statute of limitations for false claim of

citizenship with the intent to vote is five years.

L0. The defendant, ,JOSE ,fAIME RAMIRO-TORRES, voted in the

General Election of 2016 in Washington County, North Carolina.

L1. Washington County is loeated in the Eastern District of

North Carolina-

[remainder of page intentionally blank]
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COUN:T ONE

On or about November 8, 201-5, in the Eastern District of North

Carolina, Lhe def endant ) JOSE JAIME RAMIRO-TORRES , da a1ien,

knowing he was not a United States citizen, did knowingly vote in

an election held in part for the purpose of electing a candidate

for the office of Presj-dent, Vice President, and Member of the

House of Representatives, in violation of Title 18, United States

Code , SecL ion 5l- 1 (a ) .

ROBERT J. HIGDON, ,JR.
United States Attorney

BY: SEBASTIAN KIEI,}4ANOVICH
Assistant United States Attorney

8-15-20 1 I
DATE
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IN TITE T'NIEED STATES DISTR CT COURT
EOR TEE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORIPE CAROIJINA

AEFIDAVIT

a,ACXCROITND

1. I, Jahaira Torrens (hereinafter "your affiant"), am a

Special Agent (S,/A) of the Department of Horneland Security (DHS),

under Irnmigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) , Homeland Security

Investigations (HSI), formerly known as the Imrigration and

Naturalization Service (INS) , Previous to my appointment as an

ICE-HSI S/A, I was a Detective with the Puerto Rico Police

Department for approximately fifteen years. As part of my duties

I conducted investigations reLated to controlled substances

trafficking, identity theft, public corruption, violent crimes,

and other violations, I have been a S/A with the federal government

for approximately nine years. I am currently assigned to the ICE-

HSI Resident Agent in Charge,. Raleigh, North Carolina Eield Office

(ICE-HSI RAC/RA) . I have training and experience in the application

for and service of arrest and search warrants. .My duties routinely

include the investigation of vioLations of Titles 8, L8, 1-9, 2L,

and 31 of the Unlted States code.

2. This affidavlt is made

informatlon against ,fose Jalme

'RAMIRO") for voting by alien, in

SEates Code, Section 611(a) .

Case 2:1,8-cr-00029-BO *SEALED*

in support of a criminal

Ramiro-Torres ( hereina fter

violation of TitIe 18, United
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3. This affidavit is submitted for the llnited purpose of

establishing probable cause that RAMIRO co(uflitted the offense of

voting by alien, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Sectlon 611 (a). Eor t.his reason, your affiant has not incLuded

details of every aspect of this investigation, rather only such

information as necessary. Your affiant is thoroughly familiar with

the information contained in this aff{davit, either through

personaf investlgatlon or dlscusslons with other law enforcement

officers who have interviewed individuaLs or personally have

obtained information which they in turn have reported to your

affiant.

PROBABI,E ASSE

4, Government databases reflect the following j-nformation

relative to BAMIRO:

a. RAMIRO is an alien born in San SaLvador, EI Saivador.

b. On March 2L, 7990, RAMIRO was granted lawfu] permanent

resident status, in the United states-

c. Since March 21, 1990, RAMIRO has neither applied for

United states citizenship, been naturalized as a United States

citizen. nor has met the criteria for derivatlon of United States

citizenship.

d, on .Iune 10, zoff, RAMI Ro registered to vote in North

Carolina and attested under the penalty of perjury that he was a

citizen of the United States.

Case 2:18-cr-00029-BO *SEALED. 
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e. RAMIRO was assigned a polling place located in

Washington County, North Carolina.

f. RAMIRO voted in the GeneraL Elections of 2016 in

Washingtori County, North Caroliira.

CONCLUSION

5. Based on the foregoing, I, Jahaira Torrens, befieve that

there is ample probable cause to conclude that Jose Jaime Ramiro-

Torres was not a citizen of the United States at the time he voted

and is thus guilty of votinq by alien, in viol-atj-on of Title 18,

United States Code, Section 511 (a) . Your affiant respectfully

asks that the Court issue a warrant ordering his arrest for such

crime.

Homeland Security Investigations

On this )L day of August 2OLB, Special Agent Jahaira Torrens
appeared before me via reliable electronic meansr wzls placed under
oath, and attested to the contents of this Affidavit.

JAMES
United
Eastern

States Magistrate Judge
District . of North Carolina

3
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROI,TNA

WESTERN DIVISION

FILED

No. 9: \6'CQ-7eGl

UNITED STATES OF AMERI CA

DANIEI, TUDEUSZ ROMANOWSKT

TNFORMATION

The United States AEtorney charges Ehat:

General AlleEat,Long

At all times relevant to this Information:

1. The Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) governs the

immigration laws of the United states.

2. The tserm rralien" meana any person not a citizen or

national of the United States.

3. PursuanE to the INA, aliens are not permitted Eo

permanently reside in the United States unless they are 1awful

permanent residents.

4. The defendant, DANIEL, TUDEUSZ ROMANOWSKI , was an alien

born in Wroclaw. Poland.

5. On Novernlcer 8, 2004, the defendant, DANIEL TUDEUSZ

I

RoMANOWSKf, was granted lawful permanent residenEi slatuE in the

United States pursuant to the INA.

Case 5:18-cr00326-D *SEALED* Document 1 Filed 08/16/18 Page 1of 7
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6. since Novesdcer 8, 2004, the defendant, DANIEL TLIDEUS z

RoMANOWSKI , has neither applied for United Stsates citizenship.

been naturalized as a United States citizen, nor has met the

criteiia for derivative citsizenship.

7. on Septernber f2, 20f2, the North Carolina Board of

Elections registered the defendant, DANIEL TUDEUS Z ROMANOWSKI , to

vote despite not having answered the question in his voter

registrat.ion application as Eo whether he .was a United States

citizen.

8. The defendant, DANIEL TUDEUS Z ROMANOWSKI , was assigned

a polling place located in Johnston County, North Carolina.

g. The statute of limit.ations for false claim of

eitizenship with the intent to vote is five years.

10. The defendanE, DANTEI-, TUDEUSZ ROMANOWSKI , voted in the

General Elections of 20L2 and 2016 in Johrlston County, North

Carol ina .

11. Johnston County is located in the Eastern District of

North Carol ina.

lremainder of page int,entionally blankJ
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COI'MT ONE

On or about November 8, 2016, in the Eastern District of Nort.h

Carolina, the defendant, DANIEL TUDEUSZ RoMANOWSKI , an a1ien,

knowing he was not a United states ciEizen. did knowingly vote in

an election held in part for the purpose of electing a candidaLe

for the office of President, vice President, and Memlcer of the

House of Representat ives , in violation of Title 18, United States

Code, Section 511 (a) .

ROBERT .J . HIGDON, JR .

United States Attorney

BY: SEBASTIAN KIEI,MANOVICH
Assistant United States Attorney

8- 15-2018
DATE

3
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IN EEE I'NTEED STATES DISTRICE COURT
EOR TEE EASITERN DISIRICT OF NORTE CEROI,INA

AEFIDAVIE

B,acK@oulID

1, I, Jahaira Torrens (hereinafter "your affiant"), am a

Spgcia1 Agent (S/A) of Ehe Department of Homeland Security (DHS),

under Iruniglation and Customs Enforcement (ICE), Homeland Security

Investigations (HSI), formerly known as the Irunigration and

Naturalization Service (INS). Previous Eo my appointment as an

ICE-HSI S/A, I was a Detective with Ehe Puerto Rico Police

Department for approximately fifteen years. As part of ny dutles

I conducted investigations related Eo controlled substances

trafficking, identlty theft, pubIlc corruption, violent crines,

and other violations. I have been a S/A with the federal government

for approximately nine yeals. I am currently assigned to the ICE-

HSI Resident Agent in Charge, Ralelgh, North Carolina Field Office

(IcE-HsI RAC,/RA) , I have tralning and experience in the application

for and service of arrest and search warrants. My duties routinely

include the investlgation of violations of Titles 8, L8, L9, 2L,

and 31 of Ehe Unlted States Code.

2, This affidarrit is made in support of a crlminal

informaEion against Daniel Tudeusz Romanowski (hereinafter

'RoMANOWSKI") for voting by alien, ln vlolation of Title 18, United

States code, section 611(a) .

I
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3. This affidavit is submitted for the limited purpose of

establishing probable cause that ROMANOWSKI coNnitted the offense

of vot.ing by alien, in violation of Title 18, United states Code,

Sectlon 611(a). Eor this reason, your affiant has not included

details of every aspect of thls investigation, rather only such

information as necessary. Your affiant is thoroughly familiar with

the information contained ln this affidavit, elther through

personal investigatlon or dlscussions with other Iaw enfolcement

officers who have interviewed indivlduals or personally have

obtained lnformation which they in turn have reported to your

affiant.

PROBABLE CAUSE

4. Government databases reflect the fol.lowlng informatlon

relative to ROMANOTISKI:

a. ROMANOWSKI is an alj.en born in $lroclaw, Poland.

b. on November 8, 2004, ROMANOWSKI was granted lawful

c,

permanent resident status in the Unlted SEates.

Since November 8, 2004, ROMANOWSKI has neither

applied for United .states citizenship, been

naturalized as a United states cltizen, nor has met

the criteria for derivative cltizenship,

On Septemlrer !2, 20L2, the North Carolina Board of

Elections reglstered RoMANOWSKI to vote despite not

havlng answered the guestion in his voter

2
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registraEion appliaation as to whether he was a

UnlEed States citizen.

e. ROI4ANOWSKI was assigned a polling place Iocated in

Johnston county, Norlh carolina.

f. ROMANOWSKI voted in t.he General Electlons of 2012

and 2016 in Johnston County, North carolina.

CONCLVSZON

5. Based on the foregoing, I, .rahaira Torrens, believe that

there is ample probable cause Eo conclude that Daniel Tudeusz

Romanowski was not a citizen of the United States at Ehe time he

voted and is thus guilEy of votlng by alien, in violatlon of Tit1e

18, United States Code, Section 611(a).

lremainder of page lntentionally left blank]
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Your affiant respectfuLly asks

cirderinE his ar.test for such crline.

that the cqurt issue a warrant

on this 16 o."
appeared bef or.e mE

oath, and attested

Horne Iand Security Investigat ions

of August 20L8, Special Agent Jahaira ?orrens
via reliable electronic means, was pLaced under
to the contents of this AffidaviL.

United States Magi strat.e Judge
Eastern District. of North Carolina
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROLINA

EASTERN DIVISION

FILEE

AUG N 6 2OIB

PETER A MOORE, JR., CLERK

""Yffi"TrFJ&-

INFORMATION

The United States Attorney charges that:

General ALlegatiopa

At all times relevant to t.his Information:

1. The Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) governs the

immigration laws of the United States.

2. The term "aIien" means any person not a citizen or

national of the United States.

3. PursuanE to the INA, aliens are not permitted to

permanently reside in the United States unlees they are lawful

permanent residents

4. The defendant, DIEUDONNE SOIFILS, was an alien born in

Kenscoff, Port-au-Prince, Hait i .

5. On !4ay 5, 1975, t.he defendant, DI EIIDONNE SOIFILS, was

granted lawful permanenE resident status in the United States

pursuanE to the INA.

*". Ll, I A-t o-000,t 5- I F L

I]NITED STATES OF A.}TERICA

v.

DI EUDONNE SOIEILS
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6. Since May 5, L976, Ehe defendant, DIEUDONNE SOIFILS, has

neit.her applied for United States ciEizenship, been naturalized

as a united stat.es citizen, nor has met the criE.eria for derivative

citizenship.

7. On September 29, 20!2, the defendant, DIETIDONNE SOIFILS,

regisEered to voEe in North Carolina and att.ested under the

penalty of perjury that he was a citizen of the United States.

8, The defendant, DI EIIDoNNE SOIFILS, was assigned a polling

place located in Beaufort County, North Carolina.

9. The statute of limitations for false claim of

citizenship with the intent Eo vote is five years.

10. The defendant, DIEUDONNE SOIFILS, voted. in the GeneraL

Elections of 20L2 and 2016 in Beaufort County, Nort.h Carolina.

11. Beaufort Count.y is l-ocated in the EasEern DisEricts of

North Carolina.

lremainder of page intentional]-y blankl
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COUN:T ONE

On or about November 8, 201-6, in the Eastern District of Nort.h

CaroLina, the defendant, DIEUDONNE SOIFILS, dr a1ien, knowing he

was not a United States citizen, did knowingly vote in an election

held in part for the purpose of electj-ng a candidate for the office

of President, Vice President, and Menrlcer of Lhe House of

Representatives, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Section e 11, (a) .

ROBERT .J. HIGDON, JR.
United States Attorney

BY: SEBAST]AN KIEI,MANOVICH
Assistant United States Attorney

8-15-2018
DATE
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IN EEE U}IITED STATES DISTRICT COI'RT
FOR TEE EASISERN DISIB,ICT OF NORES CARO'JINA

AFFIDAVTT

BACK@.OUND

1. I, Jahaira Torrens (hereinafter "your affiant"), am a

Special Agent (S/A) of the Department of Homeland Security (DHS),

under Innigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE), HomeLand Security

Investigations (HSI), formerly known as the Immigration and

Naturalization Servlce (INS) , Previous to my appointment as an

ICE-HSI S/A, I was a Detective with the Puerto Rico Police

Department for approximately fifteen years. As part of my duties

I conducted investigaEions related Eo controlled substances

trafficking, identity theft, public corruption, violent crimes,

and other violations. I have been a s/A with the federal goverrunenE

for approximately nine years. I am currentl.y assigned to the ICE-

HSI Resident Agent in Charge, Raleigh, North Carolina Eield Office

(ICE-HSI RAC/RA) . I have t.raining and experience in t.he application

for and service of arrest and search warrants. My duties routinely

include the investigation of violations of Titles 8, f8, L9, 2L,

and 31 of the unlted Stat.es Code.

2. Thls affidavit is made in support of a criminal

information against Dleudonne Soilfis (hereinafter "SOILFIS") for

voting by alienT in violation of TiEIe 18, United States code'

Section 611(a) .

L
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3. This affidavit. is submit.Eed for the limited purpose of

establishing probable cause Ehat SOIIFIS corunitted the offense of

voting by aIien, in violation of TitIe 18, United States Code,

Section 611(a) . For this reason, your affiant has not lricluded

details of every aspect of this investigation, raEher onLy such

information as necessary, Your affiant is thoroughly familiar v,rith

the information contained in this affidavit, either through

personaL lnvestigation or discussions wit.h other law enforcement

officers who have interviewed individuals or personally have

obtained lnformation vrhich they in turn have reported to your

affiant,

4.

reLative

Haiti.

Government

t,O SOILPIS:

a. SOILFI S

PROBABI,E CAUfi

databases reflect Ehe folLowing information

is an alien born in Kenscoff, Port-au-Prince,

b. On May 5t 7976, SOILFIS.was granted .Lawful permanent

resident status in the United Stat.es.

c. Since May 5, 1976, SOILEIS has neither applied for

United States citizenship, been naturalized as a United States

cltizen, nor has met the criteria for derivatioh of UniEed States

citizenship,

Case 4:18-cr-00045- FL *SEALED*
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d. On September 29, 2012, SOILFIS registered to vote

North Carolina and attested under the penalty of perjury that

Has a citizen of the united states.

e, SOILEIS h,as asslgned a po]]in9 place located

Beaufort County, North Carolina,

on this lC day of August 2018, Speclal

.}n

he

ln

f. SOILFIS vot.ed in the ceneral Elect.ions of 2012 a;d

2016 in Beaufort County, North CaroIina.

CONCLUSION

5. Based on the foregoing, I, Jahaira Torrens, bel-ieve that

there is ample probable cause to concLude that Dieudonne Soilfis

was noL a ciEizen of the Uniced SLates at Ehe time he voted and is

Lhus gui.lty of voting by alien, in violation of Title 18, United

States Code, Section 511(a). Your affiant respectfully asks that

the Courc issue a warrant o.rdering his arrest for such crime.

appeared before me via reliable electron.ic
oath, and attested to the contents of this

Agent Jahaira Torrens
means, was placed unde r
Affidavit,
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